
AGENDA
BELOIT CITY COUNCIL

100 State Street, Beloit WI 53511
City Hall Forum – 7:00 p.m.

Monday, July 6, 2015

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. SPECIAL ORDERS OF THE DAY/ANNOUNCEMENTS

4. PUBLIC HEARINGS

a. Resolution authorizing an amended Conditional Use Permit to allow expanded Contractor
Office & Storage Yard uses in a DH, Development Holding District, for property located at
2100 Newark Road (Christensen)
Plan Commission recommendation for approval 7-0

b. Resolution authorizing a Conditional Use Permit to allow a Rooming House in a C-1,
Office District, for the property located at 1105 East Grand Avenue (Christensen)
Plan Commission recommendation for approval 6-0-1

c. Public Hearing to Solicit Input on the Community Development, Housing, and Homeless
needs in the City for Inclusion in the 2016 Annual Action Plan and Resolution approving
2016 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Local Funding Priorities (Christensen)

5. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION

6. CONSENT AGENDA

All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no separate
discussion of these items unless a Council member so requests, in which event the item will be removed from the General Order of
Business and considered at this point on the agenda.

a. Approval of the Minutes of the regular meeting of June 15th and special meeting of June
22, 2015

b. Application for a Class “A” Beer License for, Dave’s Bait & Tackle, 901 Bayliss Avenue,
David C. Huyck, Owner (Stottler) Refer to ABLCC

c. Resolution placing Advisory Referendum question on April 5, 2016 Ballot (Stottler)

d. Resolution setting a date for a public hearing for the Vacation of Tuck-A-Way Lane Right-
of-way in the City of Beloit, Rock County, Wisconsin (Christensen) Accept and Refer to
Plan Commission

e. Proposed Ordinance to amend Sections 30.17(1)(b)2, (b)3, (b)6 and (b)7a of the Code of
General Ordinances of the City of Beloit pertaining to Electronically Variable-Message
Signs (Christensen) Refer to Plan Commission



7. ORDINANCES – none

8. APPOINTMENTS – none

9. COUNCILOR ACTIVITIES AND UPCOMING EVENTS

10. CITY MANAGER’S PRESENTATION

a. Presentation “Hearing Loops Program” (Dimassis)

b. 2014 Audit Report (Miller)

11. REPORTS FROM BOARDS AND CITY OFFICERS

12. ADJOURNMENT

** Please note that, upon reasonable notice, at least 24 hours in advance, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled
individuals through appropriate aids and services. For additional information to request this service, please contact the City Clerk's
Office at 364-6680, 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511.

Dated: July 1, 2015
Lorena Rae Stottler
City Clerk
City of Beloit
www.beloitwi.gov

You can watch this meeting live on Charter PEG digital channel 992. Meetings are
rebroadcast during the week of the Council meeting on Tuesday at 1:00 p.m.;

Thursday at 8:30 a.m.; and Friday at 1:00 p.m.

http://www.beloitwi.gov/


CU-2015-05, 3 Franks Services Amendment, 2100 Newark Road, Council Report

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AN AMENDED CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT
TO ALLOW EXPANDED CONTRACTOR OFFICE & STORAGE YARD USES

IN THE DH, DEVELOPMENT HOLDING DISTRICT,
FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 2100 NEWARK ROAD

WHEREAS, the application of Steven Franks of 3 Franks Services LLC for an amended
Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow expanded Contractor Office & Storage Yard uses in the DH,
Development Holding District, for the property located at 2100 Newark Road, having been considered by
the City Council of the City of Beloit, Wisconsin at a public hearing held for that purpose and due notice
of said hearing having been given by publication as appears by the Proof of Publication on file in the
office of the City Clerk.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT, the City Council of the City of Beloit,
Rock County, Wisconsin does hereby grant an amended Conditional Use Permit to allow expanded
Contractor Office & Storage Yard uses in the DH, Development Holding District, for the property located
at 2100 Newark Road in the City of Beloit, for the following described premises:

Lot 1 of a Certified Survey Map as recorded in Volume 9 on Pages 230 & 231 and Lot 1
of a Certified Survey Map as recorded in Volume 12 on Pages 32 & 33 of the Certified
Survey Maps of Rock County, located in the City of Beloit, County of Rock, State of
Wisconsin. Said parcel contains 11.25 acres, more or less.

As a condition of granting the amended Conditional Use Permit, the City Council does hereby
stipulate the following conditions and restrictions upon the Conditional Use, which are hereby deemed
necessary for the public interest:

1. The conditions imposed on the applicant’s 2014 CUP remain in full force and effect.
2. This amended CUP allows a 3,000 square-foot addition to an existing storage/shop building,

along with temporary use of a converted manufactured home that will be used as office space
during the construction process.

3. The temporary office use shall be discontinued when the building addition has been completed or
in three years following approval, whichever occurs first. Gravel areas shall be paved at the
conclusion of this project.

4. The applicant may continue to rent the existing single-family dwelling, but must maintain a
Rental Dwelling Permit.

5. The applicant shall obtain an Architectural Review Certificate, a Certificate of Zoning
Compliance, and a Building Permit prior to beginning construction of the building addition.

6. Any major changes in the adopted conditions or use of the property shall be approved by the Plan
Commission and City Council by amending this Conditional Use Permit. The Director of
Planning & Building Services may approve minor changes administratively.

Adopted this 6th day of July, 2015.

BELOIT CITY COUNCIL

Charles M. Haynes, Council President

ATTEST:

Lorena Rae Stottler, City Clerk



CU-2015-05, 3 Franks Services Amendment, 2100 Newark Road, Council Report

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Application for an Amended Conditional Use Permit for the property located at 2100 Newark Road

Date: July 6, 2015

Presenter(s): Julie Christensen Department: Community Development

Overview/Background Information:
Steven Franks of 3 Franks Services LLC has filed an application to amend an existing Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to
allow expanded Contractor Office & Storage Yard uses in the DH, Development Holding District, for the property located
at 2100 Newark Road.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):
 On April 7, 2014, the City Council authorized a CUP to allow the applicant to operate his asphalt paving business

on the subject property. This CUP followed a staff-initiated Zoning Text Amendment to add “contractor offices &
storage yards” to the list of conditional uses in the DH District.

 The applicant purchased the subject property in May 2014, and began a substantial clean-up operation. The prior
owners operated a trash hauling business, and old aerial photos indicate the presence of large quantities of trash
& debris, old tires, junk recreational vehicles, and miscellaneous items. The applicant has removed and properly
disposed of these items.

 The applicant has proposed the construction of a 3,000 square-foot office & storage addition to an existing
storage/shop building, along with temporary use of a converted manufactured home that will be used as office
space during the construction process. The applicant will continue to rent the house as a single-family dwelling.

 The proposed project is considered a major change in the use of the property under condition #5 of the 2014
CUP, and requires Plan Commission and City Council approval of an amended CUP. The applicant’s existing
2014 CUP is attached. Planning staff has inspected the subject property and has verified compliance with
conditions 2 & 3.

 The Plan Commission reviewed this item on June 17, 2015 and voted unanimously (7-0) to recommend approval
of the amended Conditional Use Permit, subject to the conditions recommended by Planning staff.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the
City’s mission.):

 Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it
will impact both the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Action required/Recommendation:
 City Council consideration and action on the proposed Resolution

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Resolution and Staff Report to the Plan Commission



CU-2015-05, 3 Franks Services Amendment, 2100 Newark Road, Council Report

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting Date: June 17, 2015 Agenda Item: 4 File Number: CU-2015-05

Applicant: Steven Franks Owner: 3 Franks Services LLC Location: 2100 Newark Road

Existing Zoning: DH, Development
Holding District

Existing Land Use: Contractor Office
& Storage Yard

Parcel Size: 11.25 Acres

Request Overview/Background Information:
Steven Franks of 3 Franks Services LLC has filed an application to amend an existing Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to
allow expanded Contractor Office & Storage Yard uses in the DH, Development Holding District, for the property located
at 2100 Newark Road.

Key Issues:
 On April 7, 2014, the City Council authorized a CUP to allow the applicant to operate his asphalt paving business

on the subject property. This CUP followed a staff-initiated Zoning Text Amendment to add “contractor offices &
storage yards” to the list of conditional uses in the DH District.

 The applicant purchased the subject property in May 2014, and began a substantial clean-up operation. The prior
owners operated a trash hauling business, and old aerial photos indicate the presence of large quantities of trash
& debris, old tires, junk recreational vehicles, and miscellaneous items. The applicant has removed and properly
disposed of these items.

 The applicant has proposed the construction of a 3,000 square-foot office & storage addition to an existing
storage/shop building, along with temporary use of a converted manufactured home that will be used as office
space during the construction process. The applicant will continue to rent the house as a single-family dwelling.

 The proposed project is considered a major change in the use of the property under condition #5 of the 2014
CUP, and requires Plan Commission and City Council approval of an amended CUP.

 The subject property is located in a rural area surrounded by farmland, and is approximately ½ mile east of
Townview School. The subject property is served by private well and septic, as no public utilities are available.

 The applicant’s existing 2014 CUP is attached. Planning staff has inspected the subject property and has verified
compliance with conditions 2 & 3.

 A site sketch and application are attached to this report. The site sketch shows the location of the existing
buildings, as well as the location of the proposed addition and temporary office. The site sketch also shows a
recently approved driveway and proposed barn, although staff has advised the applicant that the barn must have
a larger setback.

 The attached Public Notice was sent to the owner of the surrounding agricultural land, who did not comment.
 Findings of Fact

Based on Section 2-504 of the Zoning Ordinance, the Plan Commission shall make a recommendation based
on the following considerations:

a. Whether the establishment, maintenance, or operation of the conditional use will be detrimental to or
endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort, or general welfare;

• The applicant’s operation does not and will not negatively impact the public.
b. Whether the conditional use will be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the

immediate vicinity for purposes already permitted;
• The applicant’s operation is compatible with surrounding agricultural uses, and staff has not

received any complaints in the first year of operations.
• The proposed expansion is in the middle of the 11-acre subject property and will not affect

nearby properties.
c. Whether the conditional use will substantially diminish or impair property values within the

neighborhood of the subject property;
• On the contrary, the continued improvement of this previously blighted parcel is likely to

enhance property values within the area.
d. Whether the establishment of the conditional use will impede the normal and orderly development

and improvement of the surrounding property;
• The subject property is located in a rural area that is not facing any noticeable development

pressure at this time.
e. Whether the exterior architectural design or site layout of the proposed conditional use is so dissimilar



CU-2015-05, 3 Franks Services Amendment, 2100 Newark Road, Council Report

or otherwise incompatible with existing or proposed development in the immediate neighborhood that
it will cause a depreciation in property values;

• Detailed building elevations & materials will be reviewed by staff during Architectural Review.
f. Whether adequate utilities, access roads, drainage or other necessary facilities will be available to

serve the proposed use at the time of its occupancy or use;
• The proposed building addition will utilize the existing on-site septic and private well systems.

g. Whether adequate measures will be taken to minimize traffic congestion; and
• The proposed expansion will not cause an appreciable increase in traffic.

h. Whether the conditional use will comply with all applicable regulations of the Zoning Ordinance.
• The conditional use will comply with all other applicable regulations of the Zoning Ordinance.

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:
The Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map recommends Planned Neighborhood uses of the subject property. This
recommendation is intended to guide the long-term development of this entire area of the City, and is not relevant to this
particular land use application. Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability:
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Staff Recommendation:
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of an amended Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow
expanded Contractor Office & Storage Yard uses in the DH, Development Holding District, for the property located at
2100 Newark Road, based on the above Findings of Fact and subject to the following conditions:

1. The conditions imposed on the applicant’s 2014 CUP remain in full force and effect.
2. This amended CUP allows a 3,000 square-foot addition to an existing storage/shop building, along with temporary

use of a converted manufactured home that will be used as office space during the construction process.
3. The temporary office use shall be discontinued when the building addition has been completed or in three years

following approval, whichever occurs first. Gravel areas shall be paved at the conclusion of this project.
4. The applicant may continue to rent the existing single-family dwelling, but must maintain a Rental Dwelling Permit.
5. The applicant shall obtain an Architectural Review Certificate, a Certificate of Zoning Compliance, and a Building

Permit prior to beginning construction of the building addition.
6. Any major changes in the adopted conditions or use of the property shall be approved by the Plan Commission

and City Council by amending this Conditional Use Permit. The Director of Planning & Building Services may
approve minor changes administratively.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Location & Zoning Map, Photos, 2014 CUP, Site Sketch, Application, and Public Notice.



CU-2015-05, 3 Franks Services Amendment, 2100 Newark Road, Council Report



CU-2015-05, 3 Franks Services Amendment, 2100 Newark Road, Council Report



CU-2015-05, 3 Franks Services Amendment, 2100 Newark Road, Council Report

Proposed Addition Area

Proposed Temporary Office



CU-2015-05, 3 Franks Services Amendment, 2100 Newark Road, Council Report



CU-2015-05, 3 Franks Services Amendment, 2100 Newark Road, Council Report



CU-2015-05, 3 Franks Services Amendment, 2100 Newark Road, Council Report



CU-2015-05, 3 Franks Services Amendment, 2100 Newark Road, Council Report



CU-2015-05, 3 Franks Services Amendment, 2100 Newark Road, Council Report



CU-2015-04, Matt Finnegan Rooming House, 1105 East Grand Ave

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO ALLOW A ROOMING
HOUSE IN A C-1, OFFICE DISTRICT, FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED

AT 1105 EAST GRAND AVENUE

WHEREAS, the application of Matt Finnegan of FPS Rental Inc., for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP)
to allow a rooming house in a C-1, Office District, for the property located at 1105 East Grand Avenue, having
been considered by the City Council of the City of Beloit, Wisconsin at a public hearing held for that purpose
and due notice of said hearing having been given by publication as appears by the Proof of Publication on file in
the office of the City Clerk.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT, the City Council of the City of Beloit, Rock
County, Wisconsin does hereby grant a Conditional Use Permit to allow a rooming house in a C-1, Office
District, for the property located at 1105 East Grand Avenue, in the City of Beloit, for the following described
premises:

Lot 15 of Hubbards Addition except Northerly 57 feet in equal width and Easterly 50 feet.

As a condition of granting the CUP, the City Council does hereby stipulate the following restrictions
upon the Conditional Use, which are deemed necessary for the public interest:

1. The property owner must obtain an annual rental permit from the Community and Housing Services
Division.

2. The rental term lengths for sleeping room tenants will be monthly in order to help maintain stability in
the neighborhood and to prevent common problems associated with renting by the week or day.

3. The applicant will provide at least three parking spaces designated by signs for residents and guests of
the rooming house, regardless of future tenant car ownership rates.

4. The owner may rent a maximum of four sleeping rooms and one efficiency.
5. The rooming house will house a maximum of five persons, including the supervisor.
6. The applicant shall adhere to all regulations, including but not limited to those found in Section 7.32 of

the Property Maintenance Code and Section 8.16 of the Plumbing Maintenance Code.
7. No signs of any type may be displayed on the property.
8. A transfer in property ownership will result in the immediate expiration of the CUP.
9. If the required parking spaces for tenants are provided on a property adjacent to 1105 East Grand

Avenue, the applicant needs to provide Staff with a shared parking agreement
10. If City staff receives complaints stemming from the lack of on-site management from tenants,

neighboring property owners, or elected or appointed City officials, staff reserves the right to re-review
the conditions of this Conditional Use Permit with the Plan Commission and City Council.

11. Any major changed in the adopted conditions or use of the property shall be approved by the Plan
Commission and City Council by amending this Conditional Use Permit. The Planning and Building
Services Director may approve minor changes administratively.

Adopted this 6th day of July, 2015.

BELOIT CITY COUNCIL

Charles M. Haynes, Council President
ATTEST:

Lorena Rae Stottler City Clerk



CU-2015-04, Matt Finnegan Rooming House, 1105 East Grand Ave

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Conditional Use Permit Application for property located at 1105 E Grand Avenue

Date: July 6, 2015

Presenter(s): Julie Christensen Department: Community Development

Overview/Background Information:
Matt Finnegan, on behalf of FPS Rental Inc., has filed an application for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow a
rooming house in a C-1, Office District, for the property located at 1105 East Grand Avenue. The applicant is seeking a
permit to establish and operate a rooming house consisting of four sleeping rooms as well as one efficiency apartment to
house a property supervisor.

Key Issues:
 The applicant, Matt Finnegan, is seeking a permit to establish and operate a rooming house on the subject

property. The house will consist of four, single-occupancy sleeping rooms and one efficiency apartment that will
house a property supervisor.

 The applicant purchased the house approximately two years ago. The house has been vacant since the time of
purchase.

 The proposed rooming house will have four sleeping rooms and one efficiency unit.
1. The applicant anticipates providing a first-floor efficiency with private bath and laundry for an on-site

supervisor. According to the applicant, the supervisor will be responsible for all aspects of the property.
2. The four sleeping rooms, to be located on the second floor, will be furnished with beds and dressers at a

minimum.
 The rental term for tenants of the sleeping rooms will monthly. The tenant in the efficiency will not sign a lease

and will be compensated for their supervisory duties through the provision of their apartment.
 Mr. Richard Douglas, a neighbor of the proposed rooming house, expressed concerns over the consequences of

a change in property ownership. The Plan Commission mitigated this concern by adding a new condition. No
other comments or concerns were received from the public regarding the proposed CUP.

 The Plan Commission reviewed this item on June 17, 2015 and voted (6-0-1) to recommend approval of the CUP,
subject to the conditions recommended by Planning Staff and three new conditions listed below:

1. No signs of any type may be displayed on the property.
2. A transfer in property ownership will result in the immediate expiration of the CUP.
3. If the required parking spaces for tenants are provided on a property adjacent to 1105 East Grand

Avenue, the applicant needs to provide Staff with a shared parking agreement.

Conformance to Strategic Plan:

 Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability:

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Action required/Recommendation:

 City Council consideration and action on the proposed Resolution.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Resolution, Staff Report to Plan Commission, and Existing Land Use Map



CU-2015-04, Matt Finnegan Rooming House, 1105 East Grand Ave

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting Date: June 17, 2015 Agenda Item: 5 File Number: CU-2015-04

Applicant: Matt Finnegan Owner: FPS Rental, Inc. Location: 1105 East Grand Avenue

Existing Zoning: C-1, Office District Existing Land Use: Duplex-Two
Family (Vacant)

Parcel Size: .1837 Acre

Request Overview/Background Information:
Matt Finnegan, on behalf of FPS Rental Inc., has filed an application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow a rooming
house in a C-1, Office District, for the property located at 1105 East Grand Avenue.

Key Issues:
 The applicant, Matt Finnegan, is seeking a permit to establish and operate a rooming house on the subject

property. The house will consist of four, single-occupancy sleeping rooms and one efficiency apartment that will
house a property supervisor.

 The attached Location and Zoning Map shows the location of the subject property and type of zoning in the
surrounding area. The adjacent zoning and land uses are as follows:

o North: R-1B, Single Residential; Duplex – Two Family
o South: C-3, Community Commercial District – Mini-Warehouse
o East: C-1, Office; Duplex – Two Family
o West: R-1B, Single Residential; Duplex – Two Family

 The applicant purchased the house approximately two years ago. The house has been vacant since the time of
purchase.

 The proposed rooming house will have four sleeping rooms and one efficiency unit.
o The applicant anticipates providing a first-floor efficiency with private bath and laundry for an on-site

supervisor. According to the applicant, the supervisor will be responsible for all aspects of the property.
o The four sleeping rooms, to be located on the second floor, will be furnished with beds and dressers at a

minimum.
 The applicant has stated that rental terms for tenants of the sleeping rooms will be either weekly or monthly. The

tenant in the efficiency will not sign a lease and will be compensated for their supervisory duties through the
provision of their apartment.

 Site Requirements
o The applicant has stated through communication with Planning Staff the intention to extensively

rehabilitate the building, including but not limited the following; Remodeling of bathrooms, installing
central air-conditioning, all new flooring throughout the building, remodeling the efficiency kitchen, adding
the cooking area for sleeping room tenants, as well as various improvements on the exterior of the
building.

o Section 8.16 of the Plumbing Code states that the owner or operator of a rooming house must supply at
least one water closet, lavatory basin, and bathtub or shower for each four (4) rooms within a rooming
house where such facilities are shared. The applicant’s proposal meets this requirement.

o According to Section 8-100 of the Zoning Code, all group housing uses are required to have ½ a space
per resident room. To meet this requirement, the house must have at least three parking spaces available
to residents.

 The applicant has proposed meeting this requirement through the use of parking spaces available
at 407/409 Central Avenue, the adjacent property also owned by the applicant.

 Section 8-107 of the Zoning Code requires that parking be within 500 feet walking distance from
the main entrance of the use being served. The applicant’s parking proposal meets this
requirement.

 City Review Agents
o The City Engineer submitted comments regarding a concern that the applicant did not have an adequate

plan for parking. As stated above, the applicant proposed addressing the parking issue through the use of
the parking spaces next door.

o No other Review Agents have submitted any comments or concerns.
 The attached Public Notice was sent to eleven nearby property owners. As of this writing, staff has not received

any comments or concerns.



CU-2015-04, Matt Finnegan Rooming House, 1105 East Grand Ave

 Findings of Fact
o Whether the establishment, maintenance, or operation of the conditional use will be detrimental to or

endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort, or general welfare;
 The proposed CUP will not be detrimental to or endanger the public health, safety, morals,

comfort, or general welfare, so long as the property is kept in good maintenance and resident
rules are strictly enforced.

o Whether the conditional use will be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate
vicinity for purposes already permitted;

 The conditional use will not injure the use and enjoyment of nearby properties as the exterior of
the property will not be substantially altered.

o Whether the conditional use will substantially diminish or impair property values within the neighborhood
of the subject property;

 The conditional use will not substantially diminish or impair property values in the neighborhood.
o Whether the establishment of the conditional use will impede the normal and orderly development and

improvement of the surrounding property;
 The proposed rooming house is located along a busy thoroughfare with a variety of uses nearby

including office, multi-family, and institutional.
o Whether the exterior architectural design or site layout of the proposed conditional use is so dissimilar or

otherwise incompatible with existing or proposed development in the immediate neighborhood that it will
cause a depreciation in property values;

 The applicant has proposed significant renovations to the interior of the building and exterior
façade that will not have a negative effect on the surrounding properties.

o Whether adequate utilities, access roads, drainage or other necessary facilities will be available to serve
the proposed use at the time of its occupancy or use;

 According to the applicant’s plans, adequate infrastructure will exist at the time of occupancy.
o Whether adequate measures will be taken to minimize traffic congestion; and

 Not Applicable.
o Whether the conditional use will comply with all applicable regulations of the Zoning Ordinance.

 The conditional use will comply with all other applicable regulations of the Zoning Ordinance.

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:

Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #5. The City of Beloit Comprehensive Plan
recommends Office as the land use type most appropriate for the subject property and surrounding parcels. The proposed
rooming house is not consistent with this recommendation.

Sustainability:

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Staff Recommendation:
The Planning and Building Services Division recommends approval of a Conditional Use Permit to establish and operate
a rooming house consisting of four sleeping rooms as well as one efficiency apartment to house a property supervisor
who will oversee the house, at the property located at 1105 East Grand Avenue, based on the above Findings of Fact and
subject to the following conditions:

1. The property owner must obtain an annual rental permit from the Community and Housing Services Division.
2. The rental term lengths for sleeping room tenants will be monthly in order to help maintain stability in the

neighborhood and to prevent common problems associated with renting by the week or day.
3. The applicant will provide at least three parking spaces designated by signs for residents and guests of the

rooming house, regardless of future tenant car ownership rates.
4. The owner may rent a maximum of four sleeping rooms and one efficiency.
5. The rooming house will house a maximum of five persons, including the supervisor.
6. The applicant shall adhere to all regulations, including but not limited to those found in Section 7.32 of the

Property Maintenance Code and Section 8.16 of the Plumbing Maintenance Code.
7. If City staff receives complaints stemming from the lack of on-site management from tenants, neighboring

property owners, or elected or appointed City officials, staff reserves the right to re-review the conditions of this
Conditional Use Permit with the Plan Commission and City Council.



CU-2015-04, Matt Finnegan Rooming House, 1105 East Grand Ave

8. Any major changes in the adopted conditions or use of the property shall be approved by the Plan Commission
and City Council by amending this Conditional Use Permit. The Planning and Building Services Director may
approve minor changes administratively.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact:
N/A

Attachments:
Zoning and Location Map, Application, Public Notice, and Mailing List.



CU-2015-04, Matt Finnegan Rooming House, 1105 East Grand Ave



CU-2015-04, Matt Finnegan Rooming House, 1105 East Grand Ave



CU-2015-04, Matt Finnegan Rooming House, 1105 East Grand Ave



CU-2015-04, Matt Finnegan Rooming House, 1105 East Grand Ave



CU-2015-04, Matt Finnegan Rooming House, 1105 East Grand Ave

JOSE L & CHRISTINA B CRUZ

317 WISCONSIN AVE

BELOIT, WI 53511JOSE L &
CHRISTINA B CRUZ

LARRY CORNELLIER
CORNELLIER ENTERPRISES
INC

105 DEARBORN ST

BELOIT, WI 53511

RICHARD W & SUANNA L
DOUGLAS

425 WISCONSIN AVE

BELOIT, WI 53511

GARY WEINKAUF

1822 EMERSON ST

BELOIT, WI 53511

JEFFREY VOSS

2566 RIVERSIDE DR

BELOIT, WI 53511

FOR HIM INC

P O BOX 41

BELOIT, WI 53512

CARL G & MELISSA A G
STOLTZ

421 CENTRAL AVE

BELOIT, WI 53511

EMMANUEL BAPTIST CHURCH

1151 E GRAND AVE

BELOIT, WI 535116476

BRUCE GREENFIELD

1720 STRATFORD LN

ROCKFORD, IL 61107

DOUGLAS CASH

P O BOX 1317

BELOIT, WI 535121317

FULGENCIO RIVERA

2116 CENTRAL

CICERO, IL 60804



CU-2015-04, Matt Finnegan Rooming House, 1105 East Grand Ave



RESOLUTION
APPROVING 2016 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) LOCAL FUNDING PRIORITIES

WHEREAS, the City of Beloit will be allocating Community Development Block Grant
(CDBG) funds to eligible projects for 2016, and

WHEREAS, CDBG funds awarded to the City of Beloit are limited, and

WHEREAS, the Community Development Authority recommends that setting priorities
for funding will ensure allocation to projects which will meet the greatest needs for the dollars
spent; and

WHEREAS, the Community Development Authority recommends the funding priorities
of Public Service Programs which focus on comprehensive case management strategies, with
priority given to neighborhood stabilization activities, education in budgeting and life skills, and
employment training that corresponds with local employment opportunities; Code
enforcement; Housing Rehabilitation; and Economic Development activities with priority given
to technical job training; Program Administration and Fair Housing.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the 2016 CDBG local funding priorities are
approved by the City Council as shown on Attachment A.

Adopted this 6th day of July, 2015.

BELOIT CITY COUNCIL

Charles M. Haynes, Council President

ATTEST:

Lorena Rae Stottler City Clerk



Attachment A
2016 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) LOCAL FUNDING PRIORITIES

1. Public Service Programs which focus on comprehensive case management strategies, with
priority given to neighborhood stabilization activities, education in budgeting and life skills,
and employment training that corresponds with local employment opportunities.

2. Code Enforcement

3. Housing Rehabilitation

4. Economic Development Activities, with priority given to Technical Job Training

5. Program Administration

6. Fair Housing



CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Public Hearing to Solicit Input on Community Development, Housing and Homeless Needs and
Establishing Local Funding priorities for the 2016 CDBG Program

Date: July 6, 2015

Presenter(s): Julie Christensen Department: Community Development

Overview/Background Information:

The Department of Housing and Urban Development requires that we provide an opportunity each
year for citizens to give input on public housing, community development, homeless and housing
needs and to prepare an Annual Action Plan in order to qualify to receive CDBG funding.

The Community Development Authority (CDA) board is recommending that City Council approve
funding priorities for inclusion in the 2016 CDBG Application. These priorities were developed based on
the needs identified in the 2015-2019 Consolidated Plan, which is a 5-year strategic plan for the use of
CDBG funds. In preparation of the Consolidated Plan, staff held three Steering Committee meetings
with local agencies and community leaders to obtain input about the needs of the community and gaps
in services.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):

1. Each year, the City is required to hold a public hearing to seek input on community development,
housing, homeless, and public housing needs for incorporation into the CDBG Annual Action Plan.

2. The CDA recommended the funding priorities listed on Attachment A.

3. If funding priorities are approved, they will be included in the CDBG application, which will be
prepared and sent out later in July. These funding priorities will be used to determine who receives
funds for the 2016 CDBG program year only. We would revisit these funding priorities next year
prior to the CDBG application cycle.

4. Public notices of the public hearing were published in the Beloit Daily News, Stateline News, and
emailed and mailed to the CDBG mailing list of interested parties.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact
on the City’s mission.):

o Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #4.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related
to how it will impact both the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-



municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – Not applicable

 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in
nature – Not Applicable

 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – Not Applicable

 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – The public
hearing will give the public an opportunity to communicate present and future needs of our
low and moderate income population.

Action required/Recommendation:

Hold the public hearing and approve the resolution establishing 2016 CDBG funding priorities.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact:

None

Attachments:

Resolution; Attachment A; and Public Notice



Council Report and Resolution - 2016 CDBG Hearing on Needs and Establishing Local Goals

CITY HALL • 100 STATE STREET • BELOIT, WI 53511

PUBLIC NOTICE

The City of Beloit is in the process of preparing its 2016 Annual Action Plan for submittal to the
Department of Housing and Urban Development. This plan allows the City to maintain its
eligibility for Community Development Block Grant funding.

The following public hearing will be held to give citizens and other interested parties an
opportunity to give input on community development, housing, public housing and homeless
needs in the City.

City Council: Monday, July 6, 2015, at 7:00 PM or as soon thereafter as the matter can be
heard, in The Forum, Beloit City Hall, 100 State Street, Beloit.

The public is invited to attend these hearings.

We are interested in your opinion.

For further information, call Teri Downing in the Community Development Department at (608)
364-6705 or via e-mail at downingt@beloitwi.gov.

mailto:downingt@


PROCEEDINGS OF THE BELOIT CITY COUNCIL
100 State Street, Beloit WI 53511
City Hall Forum – 7:00 p.m.
Monday, June 15, 2015

Presiding: Charles Haynes
Present: Sheila De Forest, Regina Hendrix, Ana Kelly, Chuck Kincaid, David Luebke and Marilyn

Sloniker
Absent:

1. The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. in the Forum at Beloit City Hall by President Haynes.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. SPECIAL ORDERS OF THE DAY/ANNOUNCEMENTS

a. Vice-President Sheila De Forest read the Proclamation recognizing July as Park and Recreation
Month. File 7148

4. PUBLIC HEARING

a. Community Development Director Julie Christensen presented a resolution authorizing a
Conditional Use Permit to allow a temporary outdoor seating area and temporary outdoor sales,
possession, and consumption of alcohol in a C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District, for property
located at 1180 Madison Road doing business as “Alibi Bar & Grill”. It was noted that Plan
Commission recommended approval 5-0. Ms. Christensen explained the following key points:
 Approval of the Conditional Use Permit request would allow the applicant to host an annual

customer appreciation celebration on one day in the month of July and would be indefinite
and future events would not require renewals.

 The applicant has submitted a site plan showing the location of the proposed stage area for a
live band and the location of the snow fence enclosure. The snow fence will enclose the
entire parking lot in order to denote the event area and to ensure alcohol is not consumed
outside of the property limits.

 The event will feature a live band and will likely generate higher-than-average noise levels.
The applicant must obey the noise ordinance in Section 15.10 of the Municipal Code and not
generate unreasonable sound levels that will disturb residents in the vicinity.

 The owners of The Alibi currently have permission to use the adjacent surface parking lot
owned by Schultz Power equipment event patrons to park.

 The applicant currently has a Conditional Use Permit and license that allows alcohol service,
possession, and consumption on the small patio area. In order to serve alcohol outside
during the event, the license needs to be amended to allow for the temporary sale of alcohol
outside of the patio area.

President Haynes opened the public hearing.
• James Faragher, 2796 East Ridge Road, spoke in support of the Conditional Use and

said that he believed the applicants understand the conditions and said that it will be a
very nice event. President Haynes closed the public hearing.

Councilors Luebke and Kelly moved approval of the resolution. Councilor Luebke spoke in full
support. Councilor De Forest explained that although she has no issues with the Alibi Bar & Grill
itself, she is voting in opposition due to State Statute §125.68(3) prohibiting the issuance of a
“Class B” license for premises which is located less than 300 feet from the main entrance of any
church, although she is aware of the council’s right to waive the prohibition. Councilor De Forest
requested a roll call vote. Motion carried by a vote of 4-2-1 with Councilors Hendrix, Kelly,
Haynes and Luebke voting in favor, Councilors De Forest and Sloniker voting against and
Councilor Kincaid abstained. File 8222



5. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION

a. Jerry Sveum, 2234 Pow Wow Trail, Beloit Fine Art Incubator, President made an announcement
on behalf of the Beloit Fine Art Incubator (BFAI). He said that the O.V. Shaffer retrospective
show opens July 3, 2015 and the event will increase recognition of the people of the culture in
this area. Mr. Shaffer’s work can be found in Beloit at Riverside Park, Ironworks Park and the
Hendricks Bridge. The Beloit Fine Arts Incubator (BFAI) and the Beloit College Wright Art
Museum will be presenting simultaneous exhibits of the work of artist, O.V. (Verne) Shaffer during
the month of July, 2015. He said that both galleries are calling for loaned pieces from private
Shaffer art owners for the month-long exhibits, many of the privately-owned Shaffer pieces were
commissioned as gifts to celebrate birthdays, anniversaries and other special life events. He said
these retrospective exhibits of Shaffer’s art will span many decades and will be part of a series of
projects designed to celebrate Verne’s long and prolific career in the Beloit area and the most
exciting part is that the community will be involved in the exhibits. He said that Mr. Shaffer, 86,
will have a large role in planning and installing these once-in-a-lifetime exhibits. He said other
components of this celebration of Shaffer’s art will include a “Local Road Trip” and a “State Road
Trip” to view the more than 80 public sculptures created by Shaffer for hospitals, schools, libraries
and other public buildings in Beloit, Janesville and twelve other cities in Wisconsin. The “Road
Trip” maps will combine technology with art, incorporating the use of QR codes to connect the
viewer to You Tube via a smart phone to see and hear Verne talking about the piece they’re
viewing. The same technology is being used to develop a “talking book” of Shaffer’s art.

6. CONSENT AGENDA

Councilor De Forest asked to have item 6.b. removed from the consent agenda. Councilors Luebke
and Sloniker made a motion to adopt the Consent Agenda items 6.a.and 6.c. through 6.e. Motion
carried. The Consent Agenda is accepted, approved, adopted or referred and acted upon as required
by state and local code by a vote of 7-0.

a. The Minutes of the regular meeting of June 1
st

and special meeting of June 4, 2015 were
approved.

c. A Resolution approving an amendment to the Class “B” Beer and Reserve “Class B” Liquor
License for Lucy’s #7 Burger Bar, LLC, located at 430 East Grand Avenue, Suite 102, Emily
Hopper, Agent, for an Outdoor Premises Extension was approved. File 8688

d. A Resolution approving Change of Agent for Wal-Mart Stores East, LP, d/b/a Wal-Mart
Supercenter #2532, located at 2785 Milwaukee Road, from Michael A. Lane, Jr. to Leah R.
Wampole was approved. File 8645

e. A Resolution approving Change of Agent for Rockford Pizza, LLC, d/b/a Pizza Hut, located at
2787 Prairie Avenue, from Juan Mendoza Ochoa to Elliott Stubbendick was approved. File 8645

f. A Resolution approving Class “B” Beer and “Class B” Liquor License renewal for Rockford
Pizza, LLC, d/b/a Pizza Hut, located at 2787 Prairie Avenue, Elliott Stubbendick, Agent, for
License Period July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016 was approved. File 8688

g. An Application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow a boarding house in a C-1, Office District,
for property located at 1105 East Grand Avenue was referred to Plan Commission. File 8692

h. An Application for an amendment to an existing Conditional Use Permit to allow expanded
Contractor Office & Storage Yard uses in a DH, Development Holding District, for property
located at 2100 Newark Road was referred to Plan Commission. File 8634

b. Resolution approving an amendment to the Class “B” Beer and Reserve “Class B” Liquor
License for BRBK, LLC, d/b/a Alibi Bar and Grill, located at 1180 Madison Road, Wendy K.
Drake, Agent, for a Temporary Outdoor Premises Extension. Councilors Luebke and Kelly
moved approval of the resolution. Councilor De Forest requested a roll call vote. Motion carried
by a vote of 4-2-1 with Councilors Hendrix, Kelly, Haynes and Luebke voting in favor, Councilors
De Forest and Sloniker voting against and Councilor Kincaid abstained. File 8688

7. ORDINANCES– none



8. APPOINTMENTS

President Haynes announced the openings and submitted the following appointment to City
Committees, Boards and Commissions for approval. Councilors Kincaid and Hendrix moved to
approve the appointments as presented. Motion carried 7-0.

a. Alcohol Beverage License Control Committee: Dr. Dennis Baskin, (replacing Tina Goecks) as
the School District Representative for the 2015-2016 School Year and Incumbent Malissa M.
Cronin for a term ending June 30, 2018. File 6145

b. Equal Opportunities Commission: Grace Lee, (replacing Ricardo A. Valdez) to a term ending
June 30, 2016. File 7465

c. Municipal Golf Committee: Harry Wiersgalla, (replacing Ida Lenz) to a term ending December
31, 2017. File 7382

d. Municipal Library Board: Diane Lichtenstein, (replacing Doreen Dalman) and Incumbent David
Sowl to a terms ending June 30, 2018. File 5991

9. COUNCILOR ACTIVITIES AND UPCOMING EVENTS

• Councilor Hendrix said she attended the Beloit Works Community Conversation, she said the
School District of Beloit Transition Department received a grant to help increase students with
disabilities in the workforce. She attended the Beloit Historical Society Sports Hall of Fame
with Councilor Luebke, and encouraged all to upload the Rock County video uptown funk
video and view. She announced two events coming up this weekend, Summer Gospel Jam
which will be held on Saturday and also “Back to Beloit”, an African American homecoming,
including a banquet and old school dance. There is a $10 donation and it will be held at the
Garden Inn. Scholarships are being made with proceeds.

• Councilor Sloniker said she attended the Porter Avenue Watch Group (PAWG) picnic last
weekend in the Merrill Community and commented on the nice Artwork from Brianna Hanson.
She said that she attended the City Manager welcome event last week, and talked to several
residents.

• Councilor Kelly said that she attended graduations and lots of different parties.
• Councilor Luebke said that he attended the Beloit Historical Society Hall of Fame. He said

the event honors five or six former athletes or people who contribute to athletics over 100
years and noted that David Kilgore was one of those honored. He encouraged all to visit the
Hanchett-Hartlett Homestead and the Beloit Historical Society and praised Jerry Sveum and
his wife for keeping the Beloit Fine Arts incubator going. He said that the Farmers market is
getting bigger, and that all 27 units of the Phoenix building are occupied.

• Councilor De Forest thanked the residents who attended the City Manager welcome
reception. She said she attended the farmers market, Community Action garden celebration
and noted that the artwork is there permanently. She congratulated the Beloit Memorial
graduates. She said she will attend Gospel Jam, Sun Valley Strawberry Fest; and will be
meeting with a group of students at Beloit Public Library to discuss a citywide minimum wage.
She encouraged residents to attend the Strategic Plan meeting on June 22

nd
and said the

summer food program kickoff will be held at Beloit Memorial High School on June 25
th
.

• Councilor Kincaid said that he attended a Parks, Recreation and Conservation Commission
meeting and said it was joy to see the activities planned in the parks and he encouraged
other Councilors to attend a meeting. He noted the 8

th
Annual Plein Air event last week.

10. CITY MANAGER’S PRESENTATION – none

11. REPORTS FROM BOARDS AND CITY OFFICERS

a. Community Development Director Julie Christensen presented a Resolution approving Collateral
Assignment of Ground Lease and Development Agreement for Olympian Hills. Ms. Christensen
reviewed the history of the development of the former Beloit Hospital site and explained the
following key point.



 Tax Credits were awarded for the redevelopment of 431 Olympian Boulevard into a 47-unit
apartment complex for persons 55 years and older. After 15 years, it is possible for the
developer of the tax credit project to buy-out the investment partner, dissolve the for-profit
LLC, and take full ownership of the property. The Beloit Mature Adult Housing, LLC, is opting
to buy-out the investment partner. The only remaining member of the LLC will be Community
Action.

 As part of this buy-out, the LLC is obtaining a mortgage loan from Wisconsin Housing and
Economic Development Authority (WHEDA). This loan will be used to re-finance the project
and provide additional funding for rehabilitation of the building. WHEDA is requiring the
Collateral Assignment of the Ground Lease and Development Agreement.

 The City has had no issues with the current management of the apartment complex and is
supportive of its continued ownership of this property and its efforts to upgrade the building.

 The Collateral Assignment that is being requested of the City does not inhibit the City in any
material respect. The Ground Lease and Development Agreement would remain in effect.

Councilors Luebke and Sloniker moved approval of the Resolution, Motion carried 7-0. File 5460

12. Councilors Sloniker and De Forest made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 7:41 pm. Motion
carried.

Lorena Rae Stottler, Deputy City Clerk
www.beloitwi.gov
Date approved by Council: _______, 2015



Proceedings of the Beloit City Council
Special Meeting
Monday, June 22, 2015
3:00 p.m.
Engineering and Utilities Building
2400 Springbrook Court
Beloit, WI 53511

Presiding: Charles M. Haynes
Present: Sheila De Forest, Ana Kelly, Chuck Kincaid, David Luebke and Marilyn Sloniker
Absent: Regina Hendrix

1. President Haynes called the meeting to order at 3:15 pm in the conference room at the Engineering and
Utilities Building.

2. Economic Development Director Andrew Janke presented a resolution authorizing amending the 2015
Tax Increment District #10 Budget to include a project to incentivize Pratt Industries. Council Kincaid
inquired about the timing of this request. Mr. Janke explained that council had approved the project at a
previous council meeting and that this was a resolution amending the budget to accommodate the
expenditure. City Manager Luther further explained that the timing of such amendments is quite
common. Councilors Luebke and Kincaid made a motion to approve the resolution. Motion carried.
File 7938

3. Economic Development Director Andrew Janke presented a resolution authorizing amending the 2015
Tax Increment District #14 Budget to include a project to purchase properties located at 940 Second
Street, 42 Merrill Street, 957 Third Street, and 959 Third Street, Beloit Wisconsin. Councilors Kelly and
Luebke made a motion to approve the resolution. Motion carried. File 8305

4. Councilors Luebke and Sloniker made a motion to adjourn into closed session pursuant to Wis. Stats.
19.85(1)(c) to consider the employment, promotion, compensation, or performance evaluation data of a
public employee over which the governmental body has jurisdiction or exercises responsibility. Motion
carried 6-0. The Council proceeded into closed session at 3:22 p.m.

5. Councilor’s Sloniker and Kelly made a motion to adjourn the closed session. Motion carried 6-0.
Meeting adjourned at 4:32 pm.

Lorena Rae Stottler, City Clerk

www.beloitwi.gov
Date Approved by Council: ________________, 2015







CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Application for a Class “A” Beer License for Dave’s Bait & Tackle – Refer to ABLCC

Date: July 6, 2015

Presenter(s): Lori Stottler Department: City Clerk

Overview/Background Information:
A new business presenting as “Dave’s Bait & Tackle”, has submitted an application for a Class “A” Beer License for the
property located at 901 Bayliss Avenue in the City of Beloit.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):
1. Sanchez Rentals, LLC owns the building and property located at 901 Bayliss effective 6/29/2015, and has owned

the restaurant “Salvador’s” next door for many years.
2. The applicant wishing to do business as Dave’s Bait & Tackle, David C. Huyck is a resident of Wisconsin, as

required by state law. Mr. Huyck has provided the Clerk proof of the State required alcohol sellers class
completion; a sketch of the proposed store layout; “manual of procedures”; and the supplemental questionnaire
as required for this application. The office is still waiting on proof of application to the DOR for a seller’s permit
and FEIN number and a copy of the lease with the owner of 901 Bayliss Avenue.

3. This property was the previous location of Dick’s Bait & Tackle which has since closed.
4. The initial impact reports revealed the following:

a. City Planning revealed that the property is zoned C-2 and a conditional use permit will be required. The
applicant was notified by letter to contact the city planning director, Drew Pennington to begin that
process.

b. The Police Department’s neighborhood impact survey showed that neighbors were not opposed to the
issuing of this license.

c. The Environmental and Wastewater impact survey stated that the property historically had a similar use
and would not place burden on the city’s sanitary sewer system.

d. The Health Department reported no issues.
e. The Fire Department also had no objections to the issuance of this license as long as the applicant is in

compliance of life safety codes and does not fall under habitual violation of fire codes.

Conformance to Strategic Plan:
This project conforms to the City’s Strategic Plan Goals #2 and #5 – encouraging business development and private
sector investment, and promoting high quality development in the City.

Sustainability:
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Action required/Recommendation:
Staff recommends that this matter be referred to the Alcohol Beverage License Control Committee for review at the July
14

th
. This matter will likely return to the City Council for action at a regular meeting in the near future.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact:
The $500 license fee and $50 publication fee is budgeted in 2015 as an expected revenue in the Clerks Budget.

Attachments:
Application



RESOLUTION PLACING ADVISORY REFERENDUM
QUESTION ON APRIL 5, 2016 BALLOT

WHEREAS, on June 3, 2015, City Clerk Lorena Stottler was served with a petition from “South
Central Wisconsin Move to Amend” requesting that an advisory referendum be placed on the April 5,
2016 ballot; and

WHEREAS, state law provides that a number of electors equal to at least 15% of the votes cast
for governor at the last general election may sign and file a petition with the city clerk requesting that a
proposed ordinance or resolution, without alteration, either be adopted by the common council or be
referred to a vote of the electors; and

WHEREAS, the City Clerk is required to examine the petition within 15 days of receipt of the
petition and, after having done so, has found that the required number of signatures has been
submitted and the petition is in proper form.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council directs the City Clerk to place the
following advisory referendum question on the April 5, 2016 Ballot:

“Shall the City of Beloit adopt a resolution that calls for a Constitutional Amendment
declaring that 1) Only human beings – not corporations, unions, nonprofit
organizations, or similar associations – are endowed with constitutional rights; and 2)
Money is not speech and, therefore, regulating political contributions and spending is
not equivalent to limiting political speech under the First Amendment.

A “yes” vote on this resolution would indicate support for a Constitutional Amendment
while a “no” vote would indicate opposition to an Amendment.”

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that should the referendum pass on April 5, 2016, the City Clerk is
directed to comply with state law regarding publication of the resolution.

Adopted this day of , 2015.

________
Charles M. Haynes

ATTEST: City Council President

Lorena Rae Stottler, CPM/CERA
City Clerk



CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Direct Legislation Petition for Proposed Resolution to be referred to the voters in the City of Beloit on April 5,
2016.

Date: July 6, 2015

Presenter(s): Lori Stottler Department: City Clerk

Overview/Background Information:

On June 3, 2015, Clerk Stottler was served a petition with the names of 1,680 qualified electors from the South Central
Wisconsin Move to Amend group. The petition requests the Beloit City Council to forward this petition to the voters on the
April 5, 2016 ballot in the form of an advisory referendum. The clerk is legally required to certify or deny the petition within
15 days of receiving the petition. Because the Clerk certified the petition as sufficient, the City Council has 30 days to act.

The advisory referendum question if approved would read as follows:

“Shall the City of Beloit adopt a resolution that calls for a Constitutional Amendment declaring that 1) Only
human beings – not corporations, unions, nonprofit organizations, or similar associations – are endowed
with constitutional rights; and 2) Money is not speech, and therefore regulating political contributions and
spending is not equivalent to limiting political speech under the First Amendment.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):

1. State Statutes allow that a number of electors equal to at least 15% of the votes cast for governor at the last
general election in their city may sign and file a petition with the city clerk requesting that an attached proposed
ordinance or resolution, without alteration, either be adopted by the common council or be referred to a vote of the
electors. There were 9,024 votes cast for governor in the November 2014 general election in the City of Beloit.
15% is equal to 1,354 signatures. This petition included 1,665 valid signatures.

2. As of June 9, 2015, 57 southern Wisconsin communities have passed the resolution either by referendum (35) or
council approval (22). A “no” vote by the City Council would automatically send the resolution to the April 5, 2016
ballot. Since the petitioner is requesting that the Council refer the resolution to the April 2016 ballot, the council
may proceed to honor that request without debate/voting.

3. Should the referendum pass with the voters on April 5, 2016, the clerk is required by statute to then make
publication of the resolution within 10 days. Should the referendum fail, no further action would be required on
behalf of the City.

Conformance to Strategic Plan: N/A

Sustainability:

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Action required/Recommendation:
The common council shall, without alteration, either pass the resolution or submit it to the electors at the April 5, 2016
election. The petition requests that the council refer the resolution to the April 5, 2016 ballot.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments:
Proposed Resolution, Report, Certification of Petition



Clerk Certification

I, Lorena Rae Stottler, clerk of the City of Beloit, Rock County, Wisconsin, certify all of
the following:

1. On June 3, 2015, a petition of electors of the city was filed with me requesting that
there be submitted to the electors of the City of Beloit, Rock County, Wisconsin, the
following question:

“Shall the City of Beloit adopt a resolution that calls for a Constitutional
Amendment declaring that 1) Only human beings – not corporations, unions,
nonprofit organizations, or similar associations – are endowed with constitutional
rights; and 2) Money is not speech, and therefore regulating political contributions
and spending is not equivalent to limiting political speech under the First
Amendment.

A “Yes” vote would indicate support for this resolution supporting a Constitutional
Amendment, while a “No” vote would indicate opposition to an Amendment.”

2. Within 15 days after the date stated in paragraph 1, I determined by examination of
the petition that it is sufficient;

3. There were 9,024 votes cast for governor in the City of Beloit at the last general
election, that 15% of such votes equals 1,354 signatures; and that the petition was
signed by 1,680 qualified electors of the city, and 1,665 of signers are sufficient.

Dated this 18th day of June, 2015.

_________________________________________

Lorena Rae Stottler, City Clerk



VA-2015-01, Vacation of Tuck-A-Way Lane, Council Resolution + Referral to Plan

RESOLUTION
SETTING A DATE FOR A PUBLIC HEARING FOR THE
VACATION OF TUCK-A-WAY LANE RIGHT-OF-WAY

IN THE CITY OF BELOIT, ROCK COUNTY, WISCONSIN

IT IS RESOLVED THAT a public hearing on the proposed Resolution to discontinue
and vacate Tuck-A-Way Lane as dedicated on Parkmeadow North Plat No. 3, City of Beloit,
Rock County, Wisconsin, shall be held at the regular City Council Meeting on Monday,
August 17, 2015, and the City Clerk is authorized and directed to give notices required under
Section 66.1003, Wisconsin Statutes.

Adopted this 6th day of July, 2015.

City Council of the City of Beloit

Charles M. Haynes, Council President

Attest:

Lorena Rae Stottler, City Clerk



VA-2015-01, Vacation of Tuck-A-Way Lane, Council Resolution + Referral to Plan

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Petition for Vacation of Tuck-A-Way Lane

 Resolution Setting a Public Hearing Date
 Council Referral to the Plan Commission

Date: July 6, 2015

Presenter(s): Julie Christensen Department: Community Development

Overview/Background Information:
The Planning & Building Services Division has received a petition to vacate Tuck-A-Way Lane, which is a 142-foot dead-
end street that intersects with Claremont Drive at the northern edge of the Parkmeadow North subdivision.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):
 As originally planned, this U-shaped street was intended to connect Claremont Drive to W. Hart Road, with 4-unit

residential buildings on both sides of the street.
 The Parkmeadow North Phase 3 subdivision plat was approved & recorded, which dedicated Tuck-A-Way Lane

as it current exists. Phase 4 of this subdivision was not recorded before the recession stalled this development, so
Tuck-A-Way Lane has remained a short dead-end for the past decade.

 A different developer has received preliminary approval to construct a 100-unit assisted living facility on the
northern portion of the Phase 4 land, and has proposed private driveways connecting his development to both
Claremont Drive and W. Hart Road in lieu of the public street known as Tuck-A-Way Lane. The developer wishes
to control access to Claremont Drive, which requires vacating the right-of-way known as Tuck-A-Way Lane as
shown on the attached Plat of Vacation.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the
City’s mission.):

 Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it
will impact both the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Action required/Recommendation:
 City Council consideration and action on the proposed Resolution, which states that a Public Hearing on this

matter shall be held at the regular City Council meeting on August 17, 2015
 Referral to the Plan Commission for the August 5, 2015 meeting

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Resolution Setting a Public Hearing Date, Petition for Vacation, and Plat of Vacation.



VA-2015-01, Vacation of Tuck-A-Way Lane, Council Resolution + Referral to Plan



VA-2015-01, Vacation of Tuck-A-Way Lane, Council Resolution + Referral to Plan



NOTICE OF PENDENCY
FOR THE VACATION OF TUCK-A-WAY LANE

RIGHT-OF-WAY IN THE CITY OF BELOIT, ROCK COUNTY, WISCONSIN

TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN:

There will be a Resolution introduced and filed with the City Council of the City of
Beloit, Rock County, Wisconsin on July 6, 2015 providing for the vacation of Tuck-A-Way Lane
in the City of Beloit, Rock County, Wisconsin, described as follows:

Tuck-A-Way Lane as dedicated on Parkmeadow North Plat No. 3, City of Beloit,
Rock County, Wisconsin.

A Plat of Vacation showing that portion of the right-of-way to be vacated is attached
hereto and incorporated herein by reference. The City of Beloit may reserve and continue all
easements for public utilities in the vacated area, including but not limited to sanitary and storm
sewer, water, natural gas, and electric utility easements.

Proceedings after the introduction of the Resolution will be in accordance with the
provisions of Section 66.1003 of the Wisconsin Statutes.

Dated this _____ day of _____, 2015.

CITY OF BELOIT

By:
Lorena Rae Stottler, City Clerk



RPB-2015-07, Sign Ordinance Amendment

ORDINANCE NO. _______________

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTIONS 30.17(2)(b)2, (b)3, (b)6 AND (b)7a OF THE CODE OF
GENERAL ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF BELOIT PERTAINING TO ELECTRONICALLY VARIABLE-
MESSAGE SIGNS

The City Council of the City of Beloit, Rock County, Wisconsin, do ordain as follows:

Section 1. Section 30.17(2)(b)2 of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit is hereby
amended to read as follows:

“2. Be permitted in C-1, C-2, C-3, and CBD and PLI zoning districts as secondary, on-premises
signs.”

Section 2. Section 30.17(2)(b)3 of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit is hereby
amended to read as follows:

“3. Not exceed maximum allowable sign area as follows:

Zoning District Maximum EVM Sign Area

C-1, C-2, & C-3, & PLI 75 sq. ft.

CBD 150 sq. ft.

An "on-premises, sign area bonus" may be permitted by §30.13(3) of this chapter.”

Section 3. Section 30.17(2)(b)6 of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit is hereby
amended to read as follows:

“6. Not be located in the vision triangle as defined in section 8-400 of the Zoning Code.Be set
back as required by the Zoning Code.”

Section 4. Section 30.17(2)(b)7a of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit is hereby
amended to read as follows:

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.5", Hanging:
0.5"



RPB-2015-07, Sign Ordinance Amendment

“a. Operate only between the hours of 6:00 a.m. and 10:00 p.m. if the commercial establishment
at which they are located abuts a residential district.”

Section 5. This ordinance shall be in force and take effect upon passage and publication.

Adopted this 20th day of July, 2015.

BELOIT CITY COUNCIL

By:
Charles M. Haynes, President

ATTEST:

By:
Lorena Rae Stottler, City Clerk

PUBLISHED:
EFFECTIVE DATE:
01-611100-5231-



RPB-2015-07, Sign Ordinance Amendment

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Sign Ordinance Amendments – Council Referral to the Plan Commission

Date: July 6, 2015

Presenter(s): Julie Christensen Department: Community Development

Overview/Background Information:
City of Beloit staff has drafted an Ordinance to amend four sections of the City’s Outdoor Sign Regulations, hereafter
referred to as the “Sign Ordinance.” The purpose of the proposed amendments is to allow the Central Christian Church on
Milwaukee Road to use an Electronically Variable-Message (EVM) Sign to notify the public of programs at the church. The
proposed Ordinance is attached.

Key Issues:
 The most substantive changes are listed below.
 Section 1 of the proposed Ordinance adds C-1 & PLI zoning districts to the list of zoning districts where EVM

signs are permitted as secondary, on-premise signs.
 Section 2 establishes maximum sign areas for EVM signs in C-1 & PLI zoning districts.
 Section 3 changes where EVM signs are allowed to be located with regards to the vision triangle.

Conformance to Strategic Plan:

 Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability:

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A

 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A

 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A

 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Action required/Recommendation:

 Referral to the Plan Commission for the July 8, 2015 meeting.
 This item will most likely return to the City Council for a public hearing and possible action on July 20, 2015.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Proposed Ordinance






















































































	Monday, July 6, 2015
	1.	CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL
	2.	PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	3.	SPECIAL ORDERS OF THE DAY/ANNOUNCEMENTS
	4.	PUBLIC HEARINGS
	a.	Resolution authorizing an amended Conditional Use Permit to allow expanded Contractor Office & Storage Yard uses in a DH, Development Holding District, for property located at 2100 Newark Road  (Christensen)  Plan Commission recommendation for approval 7-0
	b.	Resolution authorizing a Conditional Use Permit to allow a Rooming House in a C-1, Office District, for the property located at 1105 East Grand Avenue  (Christensen) Plan Commission recommendation for approval 6-0-1
	c.	Public Hearing to Solicit Input on the Community Development, Housing, and Homeless needs in the City for Inclusion in the 2016 Annual Action Plan and Resolution approving 2016 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Local Funding Priorities (Christensen)

	5.	CITIZEN PARTICIPATION
	6.	CONSENT AGENDA
	a.	Approval of the Minutes of the regular meeting of June 15th and special meeting of June 22, 2015
	b.	Application for a Class “A” Beer License for, Dave’s Bait & Tackle, 901 Bayliss Avenue, David C. Huyck, Owner  (Stottler)  Refer to ABLCC
	c.	Resolution placing Advisory Referendum question on April 5, 2016 Ballot  (Stottler)
	d.	Resolution setting a date for a public hearing for the Vacation of Tuck-A-Way Lane Right-of-way in the City of Beloit, Rock County, Wisconsin  (Christensen) Accept and Refer to Plan Commission
	e.	Proposed Ordinance to amend Sections 30.17(1)(b)2, (b)3, (b)6 and (b)7a of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit pertaining to Electronically Variable-Message Signs (Christensen) Refer to Plan Commission

	7.	ORDINANCES – none
	8.	APPOINTMENTS – none
	9.	COUNCILOR ACTIVITIES AND UPCOMING EVENTS
	10.	CITY MANAGER’S PRESENTATION
	a.  Presentation "Hearing Loops Program"  (Dimassis)
	b.  2014 Audit Report  (Miller)

	11.	REPORTS FROM BOARDS AND CITY OFFICERS
	12.	ADJOURNMENT

